



Laura Holdsworth

Sr Research Scholar, Primary Care and Population Health

Bio

BIO

I have been a qualitative health services researcher since 2006 and am experienced in mixed methods research and evaluation. I use a range of methods in my work including interviews, focus groups, ethnography, participant observation, document review, survey and literature reviews. My content areas of focus have been in implementation science within the clinical areas of palliative care and oncology. Through this work, I have become familiar with the challenges and ethical issues of conducting research with vulnerable groups and appropriate methods for eliciting information in sensitive subject areas, such as in exploring what bereaved family caregivers think makes for a good death. My specific research interest is in understanding the patient experience of health services in order to improve the implementation and delivery of services. I also enjoy engaging with patients as partners in the research process, from research question formulation through to dissemination. I have also worked with professional groups and stakeholders, both as participants and as collaborators in research and evaluation.

Prior to this appointment at Stanford, I was a Research Fellow in the Centre for Health Services Studies at the University of Kent, UK.

CURRENT ROLE AT STANFORD

Senior Research Scholar

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

- PhD, University of Kent , Social Policy (2016)
- MSc, Canterbury Christ Church University , Health Promotion and Public Health (2006)
- BA, University of California, San Diego , Psychology (2005)

Professional

WORK EXPERIENCE

- Research Fellow - Centre for Health Services Studies, University of Kent (1/2014 - 9/2015)
- Research Design Service - South East Adviser - Centre for Health Services Studies, University of Kent (4/2015 - 9/2015)
- Research Associate - Centre for Health Services Studies, University of Kent (12/2006 - 12/2013)
- Research Assistant - Canterbury Christ Church University (9/2005 - 8/2006)

Publications

PUBLICATIONS

- **Patient experiences of specialty palliative care in the perioperative period for cancer surgery.** *Journal of pain and symptom management*
Holdsworth, L. M., Siden, R., Lessios, A. S., Verano, M., Rickerson, E., Fahy, B., Johnston, F. M., Waterman, B., Aslakson, R.

2024

- **"Like not having an arm": a qualitative study of the impact of visitor restrictions on cancer care during the COVID-19 pandemic.** *Supportive care in cancer : official journal of the Multinational Association of Supportive Care in Cancer*
Holdsworth, L. M., Siden, R., Wong, B. O., Verano, M., Lessios, A. S., Tabor, H. K., Schapira, L., Aslakson, R.
2024; 32 (5): 288
- **Role matters in understanding 'quality' in palliative care: a qualitative analysis of patient, caregiver and practitioner perspectives.** *BMJ open*
Holdsworth, L. M., Giannitrapani, K., Gamboa, R. C., O'Hanlon, C., Singh, N., Walling, A., Lindvall, C., Lorenz, K.
2024; 14 (1): e076768
- **Building the Evidence for Advance Care Planning for Patients Receiving Dialysis.** *JAMA network open*
Kurella Tamura, M., Holdsworth, L. M.
2024; 7 (1): e2352415
- **"Diving in the deep-end and swimming": a mixed methods study using normalization process theory to evaluate a learning collaborative approach for the implementation of palliative care practices in hemodialysis centers.** *BMC health services research*
Holdsworth, L. M., Stedman, M., Gustafsson, E. S., Han, J., Asch, S. M., Harbert, G., Lorenz, K. A., Lupu, D. E., Malcolm, E., Moss, A. H., Nicklas, A., Tamura, M. K.
2023; 23 (1): 1384
- **Caregiver Experiences Participating in a Home-Based Primary Care Program: A Pragmatic Evaluation Including Qualitative Interviews and Quantitative Surveys.** *Journal of applied gerontology : the official journal of the Southern Gerontological Society*
Kling, S. M., Lessios, A. S., Holdsworth, L. M., Yefimova, M., Wu, S., Martin, M., Sheffrin, M., Winget, M.
2023: 7334648231176380
- **Effect of Perioperative Palliative Care on Health-Related Quality of Life Among Patients Undergoing Surgery for Cancer: A Randomized Clinical Trial.** *JAMA network open*
Aslakson, R. A., Rickerson, E., Fahy, B., Waterman, B., Siden, R., Colborn, K., Smith, S., Verano, M., Lira, I., Hollahan, C., Siddiqi, A., Johnson, K., Chandrashekar, et al
2023; 6 (5): e2314660
- **Factors influencing pediatric transfusion: A complex decision impacting quality of care.** *Transfusion*
Steffen, K. M., Spinella, P. C., Holdsworth, L. M., Ford, M., Lee, G. M., Asch, S. M., Proctor, E. K., Doctor, A.
2023
- **Analysis of FRAME data (A-FRAME): An analytic approach to assess the impact of adaptations on health services interventions and evaluations** *LEARNING HEALTH SYSTEMS*
Mui, H. Z., Brown-Johnson, C. G., Saliba-Gustafsson, E. A., Lessios, A., Verano, M., Siden, R., Holdsworth, L. M.
2023
- **"Never waste a good crisis": A qualitative study of the impact of COVID-19 on palliative care in seven hospitals using the Dynamic Sustainability Framework.** *Palliative medicine*
Holdsworth, L. M., Mui, H. Z., Winget, M., Lorenz, K. A.
2022: 2692163221123966
- **Implementation and Effectiveness of a Learning Collaborative to Improve Palliative Care for Seriously Ill Hemodialysis Patients.** *Clinical journal of the American Society of Nephrology : CJASN*
Kurella Tamura, M., Holdsworth, L., Stedman, M., Aldous, A., Asch, S. M., Han, J., Harbert, G., Lorenz, K. A., Malcolm, E., Nicklas, A., Moss, A. H., Lupu, D. E.
2022
- **A 360 degree mixed-methods evaluation of a specialized COVID-19 outpatient clinic and remote patient monitoring program.** *BMC primary care*
Vilendrer, S., Lestoquoy, A., Artandi, M., Barman, L., Cannon, K., Garvert, D. W., Halket, D., Holdsworth, L. M., Singer, S., Vaughan, L., Winget, M.
2022; 23 (1): 151
- **Technology-Enabled and Artificial Intelligence Support for Pre-Visit Planning in Ambulatory Care: Findings From an Environmental Scan.** *Annals of family medicine*
Holdsworth, L. M., Park, C., Asch, S. M., Lin, S.
2021; 19 (5): 419-426

- **Predicting and Responding to Clinical Deterioration in Hospitalized Patients by Using Artificial Intelligence: Protocol for a Mixed Methods, Stepped Wedge Study.** *JMIR research protocols*
Holdsworth, L. M., Kling, S. M., Smith, M., Safaeinili, N., Shieh, L., Vilendrer, S., Garvert, D. W., Winget, M., Asch, S. M., Li, R. C.
2021; 10 (7): e27532
- **Implementation of clinical practice changes in the PICU: a qualitative study using and refining the iPARIHS framework.** *Implementation science : IS*
Steffen, K. M., Holdsworth, L. M., Ford, M. A., Lee, G. M., Asch, S. M., Proctor, E. K.
2021; 16 (1): 15
- **Factors Influencing Implementation of Blood Transfusion Recommendations in Pediatric Critical Care Units.** *Frontiers in pediatrics*
Steffen, K. M., Spinella, P. C., Holdsworth, L. M., Ford, M. A., Lee, G. M., Asch, S. M., Proctor, E. K., Doctor, A.
1800; 9: 800461
- **"Along for the Ride": A Qualitative Study Exploring Patient and Caregiver Perceptions of Decision Making in Cancer Care.** *MDM policy & practice*
Holdsworth, L. M., Zions, D. n., Asch, S. M., Winget, M. n.
2020; 5 (1): 2381468320933576
- **Negotiating Lay and Clinical Issues: Implementing a Lay Navigation Program in Cancer Care.** *Journal of oncology practice*
Holdsworth, L. M., Zions, D., Wang, S., Veruttipong, D., Brown-Johnson, C., Asch, S. M., Rosenthal, E. L., Winget, M.
2019: JOP1900339
- **Conceptualizing "project resiliency": A qualitative study exploring the implementation of coordinated care with a context of system change** *Journal of Integrated Care*
Holdsworth, L. M.
2019; 27 (2): 163-172
- **Effectiveness of a Lay Navigation Program in an Academic Cancer Center.** *Journal of oncology practice*
Winget, M. n., Holdsworth, L. n., Wang, S. n., Veruttipong, D. n., Zions, D. n., Rosenthal, E. L., Asch, S. M.
2019: JOP1900337
- **Palliative Care Disincentives in CKD: Changing Policy to Improve CKD Care** *AMERICAN JOURNAL OF KIDNEY DISEASES*
Tamura, M., O'Hare, A. M., Lin, E., Holdsworth, L. M., Malcolm, E., Moss, A. H.
2018; 71 (6): 866-73
- **Optimum hospice at home services for end-of-life care: protocol of a mixed-methods study employing realist evaluation** *BMJ OPEN*
Butler, C., Brigden, C., Gage, H., Williams, P., Holdsworth, L., Greene, K., Wee, B., Barclay, S., Wilson, P.
2018; 8 (5): e021192
- **Adaptation of the Ambulatory and Home Care Record for collecting palliative care service utilization data from family carers in the UK: a pilot study** *Pilot and Feasibility Studies*
Holdsworth, L. M., Gage, H., Williams, P., Butler, C.
2018
- **Impact of a hospice rapid response service on preferred place of death, and costs** *BMC PALLIATIVE CARE*
Gage, H., Holdsworth, L. M., Flannery, C., Williams, P., Butler, C.
2015; 14
- **Bereaved carers' accounts of the end of life and the role of care providers in a "good death": A qualitative study** *PALLIATIVE MEDICINE*
Holdsworth, L. M.
2015; 29 (9): 834-841
- **A quasi-experimental controlled evaluation of the impact of a hospice rapid response community service for end-of-life care on achievement of preferred place of death** *PALLIATIVE MEDICINE*
Holdsworth, L. M., Gage, H., Coulton, S., King, A., Butler, C.
2015; 29 (9): 817-825
- **Setting up a new evidence-based hospice-at-home service in England.** *International journal of palliative nursing*
Butler, C., Holdsworth, L.

2013; 19 (7): 355-359

- **Evaluation of a hospice rapid response community service: a controlled evaluation** *BMC PALLIATIVE CARE*
Butler, C., Holdsworth, L. M., Coulton, S., Gage, H.
2012; 11
- **Preferences for end of life: views of hospice patients, family carers, and community nurse specialists.** *International journal of palliative nursing*
Holdsworth, L., King, A.
2011; 17 (5): 251-255
- **A retrospective analysis of preferred and actual place of death for hospice patients.** *International journal of palliative nursing*
Holdsworth, L., Fisher, S.
2010; 16 (9): 424-?
- **Supported further education provision for people with long-term mental health needs: Findings from a survey of further education colleges and primary care trusts across the south east of England** *PERSPECTIVES IN PUBLIC HEALTH*
Morrison, I., Clift, S. M., Stosz, L. M.
2010; 130 (2): 78-85